
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING MARCH 6, 2013    Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY MARCH 6, 2013 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE CALIFORNIA 92252 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters 
within the Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone. 
The Board may not discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda.   
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have 
your information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is 
interested and appreciates your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
 

 
 
 
Pg. 1-4 
Pg. 5-7 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be 
adopted in total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or 
organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Draft Minutes of February 6, 2013 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
B. Approve Draft Minutes of February 20, 2013 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
Pg. 8-10 7. APPEAL OF DORIS BRIDGES FOR REQUIREMENT OF FIRE HYDRANT 

Recommend that the Board deny the appeal of Ms. Doris Bridges and require the installation of a fire 
hydrant per District Rules and Regulations. 
 

Pg. 11 8. GIS PRESENTATION BY DUDEK ENGINEERING 
This is for information as the board updates their strategic plan and supplemental budget. 
 

Page 12 9. RECOATING OF RESERVOIRS 
Recommend that the Board authorize staff to solicit bids for interior re-coating of the D-2-1, D-3, F-2, 
and H-1 tanks.  
 

Pg. 13-16 10. APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH PUBLIC INFORMATION CONSULTANT 
Recommend that the Board approve agreement including additional 5 hours per week. 
 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING MARCH 6, 2013    Page 2 of 2 
 

 11. 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: President Luckman and Director Fuller: Kathleen 

Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 
B. RECHARGE BASIN AND PIPELINE PROJECT: Vice President Coate and Director Fuller 
C. HOSPITAL WASTEWATER PROJECT: President Luckman and Vice President Coate 
D. TANK RESTORATION PROJECT: Director Wilson and Vice President Coate 
E. RULES AND REGULATIONS UPDATE PROJECT: Director Fuller and Vice President Coate 
F. ADMINISTRATIVE CODE UPDATE PROJECT: Director Fuller and President Luckman 

 
 12. PUBLIC COMMENT 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may not 
discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda. 
 

 13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 15. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 17. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin 
Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are 
available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during 
normal business hours. 
 
 

This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on March 13 at 7:00 pm and March 20  at 7:00 pm. 
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office  

and at the Joshua Tree Library. 



  
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

February 6, 2013 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Victoria Fuller 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Absent 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Marie Salsberry, HR Manager/Administrative Specialist 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Mike Metts, Dudek Engineering 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 6 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was noted that Director Reynolds was absent and had notified the District in advance that he would be 

unable to attend tonight’s meeting.   
MSC Coate/Fuller 4/0 (1 Absent) to approve the agenda for the February 6, 2013 Regular Meeting of the 

Board of Directors. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Fuller/Coate 4/0 (1 Absent) to approve the minutes of the January 16, 2013 Regular Meeting of the 

Board of Directors. 
 

7. ADDENDUM TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR GROUND WATER RECHARGE 
BASIN AND PIPELINE PROJECT 

General Manager Guzzetta presented the staff report, explaining changes that were noted in the addendum 
due to the re-design of the project. 

  MSC Coate/Fuller 3/1 (1 Absent) to approve staff recommendation to adopt the Addendum to the Final 
Environmental Impact Report for the Recharge Basin and Pipeline Project to reflect the re-design that 
occurred after approval of the Final Environmental Impact Report on September 23, 2009. 

   Coate  Aye 
   Fuller  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Absent 
   Wilson  No 



8. ADJUSTMENT IN SALARY RANGES FOR MANAGEMENT, SUPERVISORY, AND 
CONFIDENTIAL UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES 

Vice President Coate reported that the ad hoc committee had met with management staff and the Committee 
is recommending increase in salary ranges for management staff in order for staff to be eligible for merit 
increases when performance evaluations are done. President Luckman reported that the committee also 
recommended raising the cafeteria plan allowance. Director Wilson commented he would suggest a cut. 

Fred Klintworth of Joshua Tree commented that benchmarked salary increases for management are not 
common.  

Tom Floen of JT commented that this is a low income area. 
MSC Coate/Fuller 3/1 (1 Absent) to approve the recommendation of the Board ad hoc JBWD Management 

Compensation Scales Project Committee to authorize an increase in the salary ranges for management, 
supervisory and confidential unrepresented employees of 5.3% effective with the pay period beginning 
Saturday, February 9, 2013; to authorize an increase in the monthly cafeteria plan from $840 per month 
to $900 per month; to establish a policy of considering adjustments to management compensation 
annually when Social Security Index changes are determined by the federal government; and to adopt 
Resolution 12-900 Approving the Compensation Plan for the Management/Supervisory and Confidential 
Employees. 

   Coate  Aye 
   Fuller  Aye 
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Absent 
   Wilson  No 
 
9. INCREASE IN RATES FOR ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
G.M. Guzzetta reported that Dudek has served as the District Engineer for at least the past six years without 

a rate increase. At this time they are requesting approval of new rates. GM Guzzetta explained that there 
are two positions that provide for most of the billing. Discussion ensued. Director Wilson commented 
opposing approval of the proposed new rates. 

MSC Coate/Fuller 3/1 (1 Absent) to approve staff recommendation to authorize an increase in the rates for 
engineering services for Dudek Engineering, the District Engineer, as noted in the letter and schedule of 
charges. 

 
10. REORGANIZATION OF ADVISORY COMMITTEES AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 

AUTHORIZED TO ATTEND MEETINGS OF OUTSIDE AGENCIES AND ORGANIZATIONS 
President Luckman reported on the new organization of standing and ad hoc board committees and 

representatives to attend other agency meetings. She noted that staff has already posted FPPC Form 806 
on the District website. President Luckman announced the following committees and representatives: 

 

Standing Committees: 
     Board Agenda Committee:  President Luckman and Vice President Coate. 
     Public Information Committee:  President Luckman and Director Fuller. 
 

Ad Hoc Committees: 
     JBWD Management Compensation Scales Project:  President Luckman and Vice President Coate. 
     JBWD Recharge Basin & Pipeline Project:  Vice President Coate and Director Fuller. 
     JBWD Hospital Wastewater Project:  President Luckman and Vice President Coate. 
     JBWD Tank Restoration Project: Vice President Coate and Director Wilson. 
     JBWD Rules and Regulations Update Project: Vice President Coate and Director Fuller. 



     JBWD Administration Code Project: President Luckman and Director Fuller. 
 

Appointed Attendees: 
     Mojave Water Agency (MWA) Board Meetings:  Rotation of President Luckman, Vice President 

Coate, Director Reynolds and Director Fuller. 
     MWA Technical Advisory Committee: President Luckman, alternate is Director Fuller. 
     Morongo Basin Pipeline Commission: Vice President Coate, alternate is Director Reynolds. 
     San Bernardino County Local Agency Formation Commission: President Luckman, alternate is 

Director Fuller. 
     Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts:  Director Reynolds. 

 
District legal counsel Gil Granito noted that committee members should be cautious not to discuss subject 
matter outside of the appropriate committee meetings. He stated that previously existing Board committees 
are now rescinded.  
 
11. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: President Luckman and Director Fuller: Kathleen 
Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant shared photos of the construction that is underway on the 
recharge pipeline project. The next Public Information Committee meeting will be February 14th at 10 
am; the committee will evaluate proposed interpretive signage for the demonstration garden. A docent 
meeting will be held March 8th with a presentation on how to collect and germinate native seeds. The 
District will again be represented at the Saturday JT Farmers Market beginning in March. 

B. PERSONNEL AND FINANCIAL COMMITTEE: Director Wilson and Director Fuller: No report. 
C. ENGINEERING COMMITTEE:  Vice President Coate and Director Fuller:  No report. 
Vice President Coate reported that an ad hoc committee met with staff regarding two customer issues and 

those customer issues were referred to the engineer. 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported the District is ready to install the soft-start bypass on Well 10 and Well 14; lighting 

at the shop is being upgraded. Staff is preparing for a new state law that requires the District to translate 
water quality violation notices into Spanish. The sale of surplus District vehicles netted over $26,000. 
The District received a reimbursement check for the copper that was stolen. 

 
14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Vice President Coate reported attending the Mojave Water Agency Board meeting where the agency was 

working on setting new rates per acre/foot of water. He stated that he and Mr. Fountain went to look 
over a customer situation, and that he may have inadvertently told Mr. Fountain the wrong date for the 
ad hoc engineering committee meeting. Director Fuller suggested that Directors refrain from requesting 
compensation for ad hoc committee attendance. Gil Granito stated the ad hoc committee may review the 
policy in the District’s Administration Code.  

President Luckman read a resolution of the HDWD Board congratulating JBWD on 50 years of service. She 
announced that photos of JBWD Board members will be taken prior to the next regular Board meeting. 

 
15. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 





















JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors         March 6, 2013 
      
 

Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Public Information Committee, Mickey Luckman and Victoria Fuller 
 
 

TOPIC: 
Approve Agreement with Public Information Consultant 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve agreement including additional 5 hours per week 
 
ANALYSIS: 

The existing agreement with the Public Information Consultant expired some time ago, although the 
District has continued to fund the work performed under the agreement, with the same terms and 
conditions as the expired agreement. 
 
The original agreement was for a short term and included very specific tasks because this was a new 
program for the District.  The Board has been very satisfied with the work performed, as evidenced by 
the continued budget funding of the program of work.  The tasks identified in the proposed agreement are 
more general in nature, “to develop, plan and execute public outreach programs, events and tasks; to 
direct development of the District website and to maintain content of District website and social media.”   
 
All of the tasks in the proposed agreement, except for maintaining content of the District website have 
been performed by our Public Information Consultant for some time.  In addition, the Public Information 
Consultant assumed responsibility for daily postings on the District’s Facebook page a few years ago, 
which was not done previously.  We are currently in the process of a major revamping of our website and 
it will be much easier for the District to make changes.  Currently, that process involves getting in 
contact with a third party, communicating the changes and paying each time for the work.  Since the 
process is so cumbersome, many small changes that would improve the overall look or content of the 
website have not been made, resulting in a static and outdated website.  Going forward, we want the 
Public Information Consultant to manage website content at a local level.  
 
In order to maintain the content of the District’s website, on top of the daily Facebook postings which 
were assumed with no additional paid time, the Public Information Consultant will need more time than 
has been authorized in the past.  The current funding is for 15 hours per week and the Committee 
recommends that the agreement be increased to allow 20 hours per week.  That is an annual increase of 
approximately $9,400, and $2,900 for the remainder of this fiscal year.    

 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM: 

Section 4 of the Strategic Plan, items 4.1.1 and 4.1.2, address carrying out the ongoing public outreach 
plan and program and updating the website as priorities. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding from existing budgeted net revenue  
$2,900 in fiscal 12/13 
$9,360 in fiscal 13/14 

 
 








	SR Public Info consultant agreement and hours increase.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT




